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Gerard Dogge 14t of August 2013.

Hoevensebaan 2 — 2950 Kapellen

Belgium — Europe

Gerard-Bakardy{@hotmail.com

Cell: 011.34.606.35.65.04. Wil 2815 A 502

No Counsel - PRO - SE

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEVADA

Teller, an individual

Plaintiff.
CASE N° 2:12-¢v-00591-JCM-GWF

v,

ANSWER - OPPOSITION
to Plaintiff’s motion for
SUMMARY JUDGMENT

as to the copyright infringement claim
Defendant. (#122)

Gerard Dogge (Gerard Bakardy),
an individual

Honourable Judge George Foley Jr.,

Forgive me for approaching the Court in this way, for defending myself in a
poor English vocabulary. As mentioned before, I'm not a lawyer, and especially
not an American lawyer.

I'm also not an American citizen, I'm European, with a Dutch nationality, born
and residing in Belgium and therefore cbliged to ‘know’ the Belgian law. Logical.
In the same way as, I believe, the American citizens are expected to know the
USA Federal Law.

So, forgive me, I don't know the American law. Although plaintiff was so kind
to send me a 150 pages with the Federal Rules of civil procedure and another 150
pages with the Local Rules of practice, it is not realistic to expect that these
documents make me a American citizen or lawyer. To translate and understand
these 300 pages, written in English, into my language (Flemish-Dutch) would take
a long time. To practice the USA law would take another number of years.
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CASE N° 2:12¢w00591-JCM-GWF

MEMQORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
As seen in previous court documents and motions filed by plaintiff, also this time
plaintiff does not inform the Honcurable Court in a truthful and complete way, but is

holding back the relevant facts with ‘hollow’ statements and allegations.

Defendant has read plaintiffs complaint and seen plaintiffs exhibits.
10 exhibits spread over 93 pages, as overviewed hereunder:

Exh.1 (pl-2) - a compilation DVD showing Teller performing ‘shadows’.
Exh.2 (p3-8) - Tellers copyright (5 p)

Exh.3 (p9-28) - some parts of Dogge’s deposition (21p)

Exh.4 (p28-40) - Dogge’'s responses in discovery Febr.8, 2013 (12p)

Exh.5 (p41-42) - screenshot easy to perform, plaintiff's exh3

Exh.6 (p43-57) - Degge’s responses in discovery March 28, 2013 (14p)

Exh.7 (p59-63) - Dogge's draft + translation (4p)

Exh.8 (p63-64) - Tellers screenshot, Bakardy’'s YouTube video, plaintiff's exh3
Exh.9 (p65-66) - Tellers tampered screenshot exh3

Exh.10 (p67-93) - Dogge’s responses discovery June 12, 2013 (26p)

The Court will notice that plaintiff is filing almost 100 pages of exhibits wherefrom not
one single exhibit proves Bakardy’s alleged infringement on Tellers questionable

copyright.

Defendant likes to remind the Court that the alleged infringement, if there was any,
might happened in ‘one’ (1} week only, the week from March 15,2012, by a YouTube
video uploaded by the defendant, wherein according plaintiff, defendant performs
Tellers illusion shadows. This video is not filed as an exhibit.

Plaintiff's exhibits are mostly parts of the discovery and deposition, dating from
more than a year later, showing defendant answers to cunning and crafty questions

from plaintiff's attorney and pulled out their context by plaintiff’s attorney.
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CASE N° 2:12-cv-00591-JCM-GWF

Plaintiff cannot prove the infringement and therefore he filed multiple- motions to
request a Court order for case terminating sanctions, hoping for an order in his favour
and to win his case without having to prove the alleged infringement and without
given the defendant the chance to prove to the court that he did not infringe.

On top, plaintiff debased himself to tampering, spoliation and bribing witnesses
as proven in defendants motion (#143).

Plaintiff's actions affirm that he can't prove his allegations (in a legal way).

Defendant on the contrary can prove that a) plaintiff's complaint has no ground, b)
his copyright is questionable, ¢} his witnesses are bribed, d) plaintiff committed
spoliation on important evidence for the defendant, e) that he instructed others to
write in their name what he wants them to write on internet forums, f) that he
instructed others to manipulate the defendant, and at last, g) defendants illusion is
different from Tellers and therefore defendant not infringed on an alleged copyright or
whatsoever,

Therefore pro-se Gerard Dogge, respectfully requests the Court to deny plaintiffs

motion.

EEE R E L ST T 2]

During the entire litigation plaintiff was using magician skills, misleading the Court,
using hollow statements. Instead of proving his allegations he rather destroys or
holds back important evidence.

Therefore defendant shall inform the Court in a truthful and complete manner,

stipulating and proving all facts in this litigation.
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CASE N° 2:12-cv-00591-JCM-GWF

I_.Introduction factual backgroun

Before and during the proceedings, the piaintiff did all what is possible to portray the
defendant as an infringer, alleging that the defendant was performing Tellers illusion
shadows, revealing Tellers method, selling Tellers prop, selling a video wherein he
performs Tellers illusion, etc..

Plaintiff can not to prove his allegations and hollow statements, simply because it is

impossible to prove things that never happened.

1. Hi fore the litigation
It is necessary for the Court to know what really happened and what caused the
plaintiff to file his complaint.

At the age of 55, Gerard Bakardy was recovering from a major surgery and

while he was going through chemo therapy he focused on his hobby/profession,
music and magic.
He invented a unique prop to control, or to make a flower falling apart without
touching it, in a way as nobody performed before, with the stem of the flower
completely visible and removable in a removable, ordinary, transparent Coca cola
bottle, filled with water.

To find out if this could be an interesting ‘prop’ for the magicians or magic
lovers, he uploaded a YouTube video as a first market survey.

Obviously, the video does not reveal his or any others method. The video was
not meant to and does not promote Bakardy’'s performances. The video does not
promote a recorded performance of Bakardy of any other performer. Bakardy’s video
clearly shows the many differences between his ‘new’ creation and all other versions
performed, rented, sold new or second hand on the market, included Tellers 40 years

old illusion shadows and all upgraded versions on the market.

4



10

il

12

13

14

15

16 -

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27
28
29

Case 2:12-cv-00591-JCM-GWF Document 151 Filed 08/15/13 Page 5 of 188
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Althcugh Bakardy is not a professional ‘prop’ builder and has no manufactory, he
invented, created, constructed and built his new creation, on his own.
Bakardy could learn that the audience is more amazed when they ‘see’ a magic trick
or illusion performed in ‘see trough’ or transparent material. Therefore, magicians as
Teller, Criss Angel, etc. do perform some of their illusions using transparent objects.
(Exh.1a) Comparing both ‘props’ anyone will notice that the transparent one is the

most amazing, {Exh.1b,c)

Unfortunately, Tellers ‘transparent’ illusions expose the secrets behind the illusions
and ruin many magicians profession.
In contrast to Tellers transparent illusions, Bakardy was researching a way to perform
a transparent illusion, as performed by e.g. Chris Angel, without revealing or exposing

the secret, and without ruining any anyone’s profession. (Exh.2a,b)

Bakardy invented and created his own illusion, he recorded a demo video ,
and uploaded this on YouTube , to share his idea with the Magic community and all
magic lovers. Shortly after Teller became aware of Bakardy’s unique creation and
contacted him, and offered to buy the exclusive rights on Bakardy’s method or prop.
(Exh.3 to be sealed) Teller assured Bakardy that the YouTube video was no longer
needed since he would buy the exclusive rights on Bakardy's trick and Teller ordered

a ‘take down’ of the YouTube videcs.

Before the litigation ever started, plaintiff recognized and admitted that
defendants ‘prop’ and, as logical result, the performance wherein the performer is

using Bakardy's prop, is totally different from Tellers and all others.
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CASE N° 2;12-¢cv-00591-JCM-GWF

Plaintiff stated in the press, (TMZ) that “he thinks that Bakardy’s trick is slightly
different, but not so different..”. (Exh.4)
You can’t be slightly pregnant, you can't be slightly dead, ... you can’t be slightly

different. You're pregnant or not. You're dead or not. Something is different or not.

For Teller, it was different enough to offer Bakardy the double amount from what
he usually pays to develop illusions as such, as proved by defendants EXHIBIT 3 in
#39. Obviously, plaintiff requested the Court to seal defendants evidence.
(Exh. 3 to be sealed)

This evidence is very interesting in many ways and shows the real intentions of the
plaintiff. The evidence shows an e-mail sent on March 27, 2012 from Teller to
Bakardy wherein:

« plaintiff is extorting the defendant to sell exclusively to Telier,

« plaintiff admits that Bakardy’s illusion/prop/method is different from Tellers,

s plaintiff offers the double amount from what he usually offers for developing

illusions as such,

« plaintiff calls Bakardy's illusion an ‘improvement’,

« plaintiff offers money to come in possession of Bakardy’s method.

Plaintiff is eager to come in possession of Bakardy’s illusion and emailed his friend
Gunther Guinee, requesting him to persuade Bakardy to sell his illusion exclusively to
Teller. In that same email Teller states that having an illusion wherein the stem is

visible standing in water has vailue to him. {Exh.5a,b)

In order to respect Tellers routine, Bakardy requested multiple times to send him the
details of the routine described in the registered copyright. Teller refused.

(Exh.6a,b)
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CASE N° 2:12-¢v-00581-JCM-GWF

Although Bakardy’s illusion is different from Tellers, and although Teller refused
to inform Bakardy regarding the details in his copyright, Bakardy informed Teller that
he was willing to sell or to perform his illusion without the use of a knife and shadow.
{Exh.6b). Teller emailed Bakardy stating that he could agree but that he wanted

some time to consider whether he would buy the exclusive rights, or not, (Exh.7)

Since Teller did not further reply, Bakardy wrote Teller that he understood that
Teller had no further interest in the exclusive rights on Bakardy’s illusion and that he
intended to sell his prop to the public, but that he will inform the buyer NOT to

perform the Teller routine. (Exh.6b,c)

Because Teller couldn’t buy the exclusive rights on Bakardy’s prop on Tellers terms,

he filed a complaint for copyright infringement on date of 04.11.2012.

2. History during the litigation.
Plaintiff, Teller, filed a complaint but NEVER filed a single shred of evidence to prove
the alleged infringement. On the contrary, the most important ‘key’ evidence,
Bakardy's video is missing.
Instead, plaintiff filed thousands of pages printed articles stating that he is a
famous magician and that he started performing shadows almost 40 years ago.
Noteworthy, none of these pages nor articles mention that ‘shadows’ is said to be a

copyrighted illusion from Teller,

Further, plaintiff files a document to prove that he obtained a Copyright
registration " as a work of the performing arts in the nature of a “pantomime drama”
, wherein he describes himself as the *‘murderer’ who is killing a rose by slicing into its

shadow,
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CASE N° 2:12-¢v-00581-JCM-GWF

As far as defendant is aware, Tellers performs his act ‘shadows’ in Las Vegas.
On date of 07.08.2013 defendant received plaintiff's supplementary disclosures
including (bate N° TELLERCO00420) a DVD showing Tellers performance ‘shadows’.
That was the first time defendant saw the complete 3:10 minutes performance of

‘shadows’, at least... performed by Teller.

Prior to the unique creation of the defendant, he noticed multiple magicians
such as Petros, Hector, ALSmagic, Teller, Alexander, Ian McCarty, etc.. (Exh.Ba-g)

on the YouTube channel performing a magical routine, similar to ‘shadows’,

Further defendant noticed a ‘documentary’ videe on YouTube wherein some

people state that they were ‘emoticnally touched’ and start to cry when they saw

Tellers performance, shadows. http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=YEzoSKrtn10

The documentary takes 2:04 minutes and shows some fragments of Tellers
performance. About 30 seconds, about 10% of the complete routine as showed on
plaintiffs DVD filed in his disclosures, It is absurd to say that defendant copied Tellers
act while the defendant never saw Tellers act. The shadows routine as performed by
Teller is NOT to be seen on the internet. The only thing what defendant ever saw of
Tellers ‘shadows’ is a documentary video, as described above, showing a few short
fragments of Tellers performance and an open challenge : " Nobody knows how it is

done, and no one will ever figure it out...”

Plaintiff does not prove that defendant creation is based on Tellers shadows.
Defendant declared and explained to the plaintiff during the discovery that his

creation was based on a shadow illusion performed by Criss Angel. (Exh.9a,b,c):

g
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CASE N° 2:12-cv00591-JCM-GWF

INTERROGATORY NO. 4:

Describe in your own words the creation of The Rose and Her Shadow, to
include The Rose, including when you decided to create it and why you decided
to create it.

Answer: Inspired by Criss Angel’s shadow, the ‘creation’ of my
method or prop was very exciting. I decided to create my own, newer, more
modern and more magical method in 2007. Why? Because the ‘rose prop’ was
sold out.

INTERROGATORY NO. 8:
State all aspects of The Rose and Her Shadow that you believe are unique and
do not exist in Shadows,

Answer: Tellers ‘act”is not spoken, nothing is said or sung, there is no text,
nothing is written or musically accompanied. The only thing that remains are
moves, dance moves, choreography and the attitude of the performer himseif.

Defendant can read ad nauseam, every movement, even the smallest moves
have been written and described in Tellers copyright certificate. 5uch as
movements of plaintiff's head, the position of Teller's thumb, positioning of
the knife in the shade, which side Teller is on the stage, left or right, etc ...
(ves, ad nauseam). This apparently is the way to describe a "pantomime work”.

If one would look at the differences in Bakardy's version, looking for the same
detailed description and all tiny movements, one can enumerate thousand
differences and it would also be annoying and ad nauseam to read.

Therefore, defendant would fike to limit his answer, encouraging the plaintiff,
Jury and Court to watch 'The Bakardy Rose’ video on YouTube. In this video
Gerard Bakardy performs one of his copyrighted versions with 'The Rose’, using
exactly the same method as used in 'The Rose and her Shadow’. A picture
{video) says more than thousand words.

The first question everyone is asking after watching a magic trick is:  How do
you do that,... how is this possible?? In Tellers presentation, 'Shadows’, the
answer to this question is often sought in his ...'bud’ vase’,

Just as Criss Angel’s act, manipulating the shadow of an
‘ofive’ in a transparent cocktail glass, Bakardy’'s method uses
a transparent bottle.

Obviously, this makes a trick more magical. More impossible.
This was obviously the reason that plaintiff offered to buy Bakardy’s method.
9
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CASE N° 2:12-cv-00591-JCM-GWF

Plaintiff, Teller stated multiple times in the discovery and deposition, that he never
performed shadows in the way as to be seen on Bakardy's demo-video, that he never
performed ‘shadows’ in a water filled, removable, and transparent vase or bottle and a

removable and complete visible rose stem.

It is clear that Bakardy’s version is not based on Tellers 40 years old version,
wherein he performs an illusion with a non transparent ‘bud’ vase and wherein the

flower is only half visible,

3. Are both illusions different from each other ?
Plaintiff admits that both tricks are different from each other, as proven in the
exhibits:
(Exh.10,11,12,13,14,15,16,17,18,19)
1. Plaintiff never performed ‘shadows’ in a transparent vase or bottle.
Defendant can. (Exh.13,14,17)
2. Plaintiff never performed ‘shadows’ in a transparent vase or bottle, filled with
water. Defendant can. (Exh.13,14,17,18,19)
3. Plaintiff never performed ‘shadows’ in a non transparent vase or bottle, filled
with water. Defendant can. (Exh.19)
4. Plaintiff never performed ‘shadows’ with the stem of the rose completely visible.
Defendant can. (Exh.13,14,18)
5. Plaintiff never performed ‘shadows’, removing the rose stem out of a
transparent vase or bottle, showing that his stem was removable.
Defendant can. (Exh.13,14,19)
6. Plaintiff never performed ‘shadows’ removing a transparent vase or bottle from
the table showing that the wvase or Dbottle was removable.

Defendant can. (Exh.13,14)

10
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CASE N® 2:12-cv-00581-JCM-GWF

7. Plaintiff never performed ‘shadows’ pouring out the water of a transparent vase
or bottle, showing that there are no gimmicks hidden in the vase or bottle.
Defendant can. {(Exh.13,14)

8. Anyone can perform ‘shadows’, as seen on the internet before plaintiff
interfered with several magicians. Plaintiff is unaware of anyone else in the
world performing Bakardy’s illusion. (Exh.10,12,13,14) Defendant is also

unaware,

In Bakardy’s illusion all items are complete and 100% visible, the flower Is
completely visible and the transparent Coca Cola bottle shows what's in the vase or
bottle, namely water. Bakardy shows the entire rose-stem a 100% visible in the
bottle,

Just like Chris Angel's illusion, Bakardy’s illusion is different and more magical than
Tellers, since Teller's shadows is performed in a NON transparent *bud vase’ which

might hide the method to make a rose fall apart.

Plaintiff unjustly refers to Bakardy’s ‘moves’ or choreography as they are
similar as the choreography described in Tellers registered copyright. Plaintiff
deliberately conceals and is silent about the fact that Bakardy’s moves are focused

and connected with total different items as Tellers.

Comparing the choreography in both illusions to discover the similarities or

differences cannot be done by disregarding the items, Even if some fragments in the

choreography would look similar at first sight, it does not mean that the illusions are

similar, Sugar and salt look similar, but are very different.

11
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CASE N° 2:12-cv-00581-JCM-GWF

Obvious, there is a fundamental difference between the illusions :

= Bakardy shows that there is no mechanism or whatsoever hidden in the items
visible for the audience, Teller NEVER did.

» Plaintiff is silent about the fact that Bakardy shows a complete flower/rose,
Teller NEVER did.

» Plaintiff is silent about the fact that Bakardy takes the rose stem out of the
transparent bottle, Teller NEVER did.

« Plaintiff is silent about the fact that Bakardy lifts the transparent vase/bottle
from the table, Teller NEVER did.

» Plaintiff is silent about the fact that Bakardy pours water out of the transparent

vase/bottle, Teller NEVER did.

One can read ad nauseam, every movement, even the smallest moves have been
written and described in Tellers copyright certificate, Such as movements of plaintiff's
head, the position of Teller's thumb, positioning of the knife in the shade, which
side Teller is on the stage, left or right, etc ... (yes, ad nauseam). Apparently this

was, 40 years ago, the way to describe a "pantomime work",
If one would look at the differences in Bakardy's version, locking for the same
detailed description and all tiny movements, one can enumerate thousands of

differences and it would also be annoying and ad nauseam to read.

Defendant will spare the Court from reading such a list of differences, but will call the

attention to some of the countless differences in the ‘chorecgraphy’ in the list below:

12
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CASE N° 2:12-cv-00591-JCM-GWF

In Telers description :

1. The stage is dark.
2. Teller describes himself as murderer

3. Teller enters the stage on the left side.

4. Teller carries a ‘dagger’.
5. Tellers table supports a white bud vase
only, and no mare,

6. Teller does not pick up anything from the
table.

7. Teller stands stage right edge of the
screen.

8. Teller places his knife on a paper screen.

9. Teller stabs gently trough the paper.

10, The murderer pauses, then glides to the
far left edge of the screen

11.Teller again cuts through the shadow of
the half visible rose stem standing in the
ncn transparent bud vase

12.Teller places the daggers tip on the
stem/blassom and cuts in the shadow of
the half visible rose stem standing in the
non transparent bud vase, he pierces the
paper,

13.0ne by One the petals start to fall off,
from the half visible rose stem standing
in the non transparent bud vase.

14.Teller gives a final jab, the last petal
drops off from the half visible rose stem
standing in the non transparent bud
vase,

15.Teller pricks his thumb on the knife
16.Teller brings his thumb to his mouth.

17.Teller sucks the blood from the wound.

18.Tellers tip of the shadow of his thumb is
bleeding, he reaches up and touches the
stream of blood with the heel of his right
hand. It's real.

19.The end,

In Bakardy’s video:

1. The stage is clearly light up.

2. Bakardy's act is comical as he was a
clown

3. Bakardy enters the stage on the right
side.

4. Bakardy is empty handed.

5. Bakardy's table supports a water filled
transparent coca cola bottle, showing a
100% visible rose/stem, and a knife.

6. Bakardy picks up the knife from the table.

7. Bakardy stands stage left edge of the
screen

8. Bakardy places the knife on a hard board
on the easel,

9. Bakardy has no paper to stab trough.

10. Balkardy not pauses, and keeps his
position

11.Bakardy cuts through the shadow of the
complete visible rose stem standing in a
transparent Coca Cola bottle,

12.Bakardy walks to the other side of the
with board, and cuts the shadow cn one
part of the blossom, of the complete
visible rose stem standing in a
transparent Coca Cola bottle. and does
not pierces the paper,

13. Bakardy again walks to the other side of
the with board, and cuts the shadow on
one part of the blossom, of the complete
visible rose stem standing in a
transparent Coca Cola bottle. and does
not pierces the paper. One petal falls.

14.Bakardy does not ‘jab’ but with a sawing
mavement he saws the last petal from the
stem in the shadow on one part of the
blossom, of the complete visible rose
stem standing in a transparent Coca Cola
bottle.

15. Bakardy does not pricks himself but puts
the knife down.

16.Bakardy never brings his thumb to his
mouth.

17. Bakardy never sucks blood,

18. Bakardy does not do any of these actions.

19. Bakardy’s performance is not finished yet.

20. Bakardy takes the rose stem out of the
vase,

21.Bakardy put the rose stem on the table.

22, Bakardy lifts the vase/Coca Cola bottle;

23.Bakardy pours the water out of the bottle
in a glass.

24, Bakardy brings the glass to his mouth.

25. Bakardy’s table start magically to float in
mid air,

26. The end.
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CASE N° 2:12-cv-00591-JCM-GWF

The choreography is not determinative to the degree of difficulty, or to the degree of
magical value. Even if the choreography was exactly similar to each other, the illusion
is still different since Bakardy's illusion is performed in a higher degree of difficulty
and with more magical value. The copyrighted choreography of the ‘ballet dancer’
on the floor mat may be exactly similar to the copyrighted chorecgraphy of the ‘rope
dancer’, dancing 100 feet above the Grand Canyon, but the performances would be
considered as different from each other. Which performance is the most beautiful,
exiting, difficult, or most magical is irrelevant.  Relevant is that the performances

are different.

The missing video could show that Bakardy’s illusion is different from Tellers. The
internet still shows a video from Bakardy, ‘The Bakardy Rose’. Although this video is
not showing a magica! illusion, the video shows clearly that Bakardy’s prop does not
limit the performance as in Tellers performance, but surpasses Tellers performance
with showing the entire rose stem from the beginning of the illusion and with at least

6 more actions towards the end of the illusion. (see list above)

4. Is the 'prop’ different in both illusions ?
For sure, both props needed to perform the illusions, are different from each other.
Obviously, otherwise Teller would not offer the double from what he usually pays for
developing a prop or method as such,

Unfortunately, ‘what goes around, comes arcund’ is now what Teller
experiences. Teller, who built his career by exposing and revealing other magicians
illusions is now confronted with the WWW Internet as the revealer of shadows and
‘traitor’ of the secret. Nota bene NOT by Videos of the defendant.

On the internet anyone can buy, rent or learn how to built the ‘prop’ to make a rose

fall apart as in Tellers ‘shadows’. (Exh.20a-d)
14
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CASE N° 2:12-cv-00591-JCM-GWF

Anyone can see on the internet that anyone can perform the illusion since the
‘prop’ is self working and there is no need of sleight of hand or any other magicians
skill to perform ‘shadows’.

When a illusion is self working it means that the performer needs no skills,
and that the 'prop’ will do the work for him. Since the illusion is not depending on the
performers skills but on the ‘prop’, the ‘prop’ becomes the essential and most
important item to perform the ilusion. It is impossible to perform the illusion without
the prop.

This is the case in ‘shadows’ by Petros, Hector, ALSmagic, Teller, Alexander, Ian
McCarty, and all others... who built, bought or rented the *prop’ as to be seen on the

internet. Hector bought his prop 7 years ago, second hand. {(Exh. 21a,b)

No one ever performed the lllusion in a transparent vase or bottle, simply
because the prop doesn’t allow to do so, as to be seen on the internet, No one ever

performed the illusion in a water filled or removable or transparent vase or bottle,

~ simply because the prop doesn't allow to do so, as to be seen on the internet.

Bakardy is the first and only in the world, performing an illusion wherein a
complete and 100% visible rose/flower falls apart, without touching it, standing in a
removable, water filled and transparent vase or bottle.

Obvious, the prop is different, Also Teller admit that Bakardy’s prop and performance

is different.

Normally, whenever ‘copy pirates’ are discovered on the market, (Rolex, Cartier,
Nike, Lacoste, etc..) the criginal manufacturer destroys all copies in a demonstrative
way, mostly with a bulldozer.

Obvious, they never offer money to the “pirates’. Logic and obvious.
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In contrast to what big brands do, Teller offered money to Bakardy what clearly

indicates that Bakardy’s prop/illusion is better than Tellers and not just a ‘copy’.
Deposition : p92:12-24 (Exh.22c¢)

Q. Did you ever offer money, Mr. Teller, to people who are infringing on your
copyrighted tricks ?

A, Why would I do that?

Q. Youdidittome?

A. No sir. I--I—if someone were infringing on my copyright, I would expect them

to offer me money. Not the other way around. In your case, I have explained exactly

why it was that I offered you, as a courtesy to you, on an assumption that you were a

good man, something fo defray your development costs.

Q. Okay. Very kind of you, Mr. Teller.

The plaintiff's statements that the infringer should pay and not be paid, are in
contradiction to what plaintiff did. First offering the defendant $15.000, then $40.000.
In one of the phone conversations plaintiff considered to pay defendant $125.000 to

assume full ethical and legal possession of the defendants prop or method.

First set admissigns (Exh.23):

Request 9: Admit that in one of the negotiation calls you offered defendant $40.000
as this would have cost you as much as starting a litigation against
defendant.

Response: ...Teller admits that he attempted to settle and resoive the dispute by

acquiring the infringing llusion’s prop for $40.000.
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Second set admissions (Exh.24):

Request 2: Admit that you've wrote to defendant in email from 03.27.2012 that you
would like to offer $15.000 to the defendant to “assume full ethical and
legal possession of your method”.

Response: ...the answer is admitted. Moreover , the plaintiff offered even larger
amounts of money to avoid the defendant’s threat to sell the iflusion to
the Chinese.

Bakardy’s prop must be significant different since Teller was requesting others to

approach Bakardy. In the beginning of the litigation Teller requested Guinee to

persuade Bakardy, to sell his creation exclusively to Teller and to no one else.

As reward Guinee was invited as Tellers guest to come to Las Vegas, and so on.. as

stated in (Exh.25a,b) his email from April 4" ,2012 :

"...If we could agree on a realistic fee, I would consider hiring
him (Bakardy) as consultant to try and improve my trick, provided
of course, he takes it off the market and sells it to no one but
me. I think his notion of gseeing the stem in water might have
value for me..” and ™ ... Know that regar&less of the outcome,
you now have a new friend in the US, When you come to Vegas
you will be most cordially received as my guest.

And if there are any Penn & Teller materials (e.g. my David
Abbot book) that interest you, they will be on their way to you

with my gratitude...Teller.”

Teller was offering money, before the litigation started, although at that time there

was no dispute to ‘settle’. Teller just wanted to buy exclusivity on Bakardy’s prop.
Plaintiff is betraying himseif and it's obvious that defendants method/prop is different

and logically results in an illusion different from Tellers.
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5. How _many props are there involved to make the illusion ‘shadows’

working?

One. Only one. It is not the magicians knife or whatsoever in his hand, it's not the
easel and white board, it's not the shadow or any other way of lighting, etc.. The
illusion can be performed without any or all items here stipulated, they are all
superfluous and misdirection,

The prop/method is situated in the rose/vase-bottle on the table on stage.
Without this particular prop it is impossible to perform the illusion ‘shadows’. Obvious,
this prop is essential and the most important in the illusion.

Teller admits that the prop/method is different, but calls it the least important
prop. (deposition p122:1) (Exh.26a,b) Defendant recognizes Tellers vanity and
that he wants to be the most praised and important in the scene, and most probably
he thinks he is, but it must be said, if the prop wasn't there, or refuses to work, Teller
would be standing there, waving his knife as a clown because simply nothing would
happen. Even a spotlight, creating cne or thousand shadows will not help him to

perform the illusicon if his prop fails or is missing.

When comparing the two illusions, Tellers ‘shadows’ and Bakardy’s ‘The Rose
and her Shadow’ or Bakardy's 'The Bakardy Rose” which is still to be seen on YouTube,
it becomes clear that the prop limits the performance. Logic and obvious.

Just like the engine limits the performance of a car, just like the tools limif the
constructor who can't drill 2 hole with 2 hammer, the magic performance is limited by
the tools, in this casé the prop/method.

Teller is aware that his prop does not allow him to perform the illusion In the
same way as Bakardy does, and therefore he first offered the double from what he
usually pays for developing props as such. Then Teller offered $40.000 and considered

to pay $125.0000 to assume the exclusive rights on Bakardy’s creation/prop/method,
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6. Are self-working illusions such as shadows to be called ‘art’?
As explained above, no skills are required to perform self working illusions. Anyone
can buy or rent or built a prop to perform ‘shadows’, therefore it's fair to say that
there is no art involved, Logic and obvious,

Performing shadows is as easy as performing an ‘illusion’ wherein a slice of
bread ‘jumps’ out of a toaster ..on the magicians magical gestures in its shadow,
Obviously, the rose in shadows is just like the bread slices in the toaster, commanded
by another action (the prop) than the magicians ‘fake’ gestures.

In contrast to the plaintiff, defendant will never call these self working illusions
a piece of ‘art’, but rather cheating on the audience, since there is no magic involved.

It would be fair to call the prop builder an artist, since he made it possible for
everyone to pretend that they are performing a magical illusion or trick, while in fact
they are just doing ...nothing. The just bought themselves a self working trick,
Defendant on the contrary invented, created and constructed a prop, which allows a
‘magician’ to show that there are no ‘hidden’ commands in a white bud vase as used
by Teller in ‘shadows’ by performing the illusion in a ordinary transparent Coca Cola
bottle.

The defendants statement *Better than in Las Vegas’ is justified, since, as far
as defendant is aware of, there is not one person or magician in the world, even not
in Las Vegas, who performs an illusion wherein a rose, placed in a transparent vase
or bottle, with the stem completely visible, falls apart on the magicians command, as
far as defendant is aware of.

Defendant is the first and still the only one in the world who uploaded a video on
YouTube, showing that he is the only ene who is able to ‘control’ a rose falling apart,
in a removable, water filled, transparent, ordinary Coca Cola bottle, with the
removable stem of the flower completely visible, as Teller admitted in tempore non

suspect. (Exh,12,13)
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7. Are self-working jllusions such as shadows copyrightable ?

Yes, without doubt, Teller has a copyright and Bakardy has a copyright and there may

be more persons having a copyright on an illusion as such, (Exh.27a-e)

8. Does ¢ ri rotect a self-working i ion such as ‘shadows’ ?

No. Absolutely not,

Not according the Furopean law. Defendant refers to judgments of the
European Court of Justice - Judgment from Juiy 16,2009, Case C-5/08, 521,
Infopaq V. Danske Dagblades Forening, -- Judgment from October 4, 2011,
Case C-403/08 & C-429/08, AMI, 13, note Premier Leagque V. C Leisure, --

Judgment from March 1, 2012, Case C-604/10, Football Dataco V. Yahoo!.

The European Court states that originality is not present in the creation when
technical considerations, rules or considerations, leave no rocom for freedom of

creativity.

The creation "shadows" is a performance in which apply technical
considerations, which are offered for sale on the World Wide Internet. A
creation like "shadows" is based on a technical rule or consideration, and is
therefore not original and can therefore in no way have a copyright. Since the
complete performance is based on a technical device, which forms the core of
the whole performance, or in other words, if the technicality or technical device
would not be there, there would not be a 'shadows' illusion and Mr. Teller would

only be waving with a knife without anything happening. (Exh.1b,c)
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» Not according the U.S. Government Copyright Office from Washington.

The United States Government - Copyright Office specialists informed the
defendant on date of January 29, 2013 in an official letter that: “Copyright does
not_protect_magic routines”, confirming their statement on April 10, 2013,
(Exh.28 e-h).

The European jurisdiction is clear when it comes to technical limited performances and
the U.5. Government is even more clear, stating that magic routines are not

protected anyhow.

To defendants opinion, wise laws, It is impossible to protect an “illusion”, because an
“illusion” is something what is not really happening, it is ‘make believe’ which each

individual can experiences, through his own eyes, in his own way.

9. D copyright prove that he is the inventor of *shadows’ ?
Not at all. It only proves that Teller performs ‘shadows’ from a certain date.
Teller was for sure not the first to perform a shadow illusion. It is proven that
sympathetic/voodoo” magic, like ‘shadows’ was performed hundreds of years ago.
{(1584- English book, The discovery of witchcraft by Reginald Scot) & (1770- British
magician Jonas) (1784- Italian magician Pinetti) as explained by plaintiff's ‘expert

witness’ Jim Steynmeyer in his expertise report. (Exh.29)

The ‘idea” of sympathetic/voodoo illusions exists for many, many years and was

absolutely not invented by Teller. Anyhow, ‘ideas’ are not copyrightable, according

the copyright rules of the U.S. Government Copyright Office. (Exh.28a,h)
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10. Tellers copyright is questionable and doubtful,

To prove copyright infringement, Teller must prove “ownership” of a valid copyright.
There is no doubt that Teller registered shadows as his work on date of January
6", 1983, but it is questionable and doubtful whether Teller registered and described
the nature of his work in the right way.
Tellers work is titled ‘Shadows’ and the nature of this work is titled pantomime

drama. (Exh.27e)

Everyone describes ‘shadows’ as a magic trick, a magic illusion, a magic routine, as
to be seen in the hundreds of newspaper-articles filed in plaintiff's exhibits. Teller

himself describes ‘shadows’ as a magic trick-magic illusion. (Deposition Exh.30)
Misleadingly he registered his work as a pantomime drama to achieve a copyright on a

magic routine, which is not copyrightable according the U.S. Government Copyright

Office of Washington. Therefore, Tellers copyright is not valid.

The U.S. Government Copyright Office of Washington statement is clear:

“magic routines are NOT protected by copyright”. (Exh.28e-h)

Plaintiff copyright Is guestionable for several other reasons.

» Similar magic routines were performed hundreds of years ago. (Exh.29)

» An‘idea’is not copyrightable. {(Exh.28 a-h)

» Magic routines are not protected by copyright. (Exh.28e-h)

« Teller abandoned his work, the illusion ‘shadows’ is sold, rented, performed
worldwide and is a standard illusion of many magicians. (Exh.8a-e & 20a-n)

« Teller is aware that ‘shadows’ is a standard trick. (Exh.39a)
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s Teller openly challenged others to copy his work shadows when Penn stated on
television and on the internet: “"No one knows how shadows is done and no one
will ever figure it out” . {Exh.31a)

» Teller did not inform anyone that he has a copyright on ‘shadows’.

(Exh.31b-e)

» Teller neglected the ruling of the U.S. Copyright Office. (Exh. 28a-d)

th his compiaint.i stionable an u I.

On April 11™, 2012, plaintiff overloaded the internet with one-sided statements that
Tellers magic trick ‘shadows’ was stolen and revealed by a Dutch thief and crook and
that he filed a complaint to prove the alleged infringement in the Nevada Court,

demanding a JURY TRIAL . (Exh.32a,b)

Now, plaintiff seems to make an 180°. U turn.

»_Plaintiff’s multiple motions,

In the last weeks, plaintiff filed multiple motions requesting the Court “to deem
defendants answers in the discovery’, or for ‘Case terminating sanctions” every time
with the same ‘goal’ in mind, to end the proceedings without advocating the ‘ground’
of the litigation: did Bakardy infringe the alleged copyright.

Apparently plaintiff's motions have two reasons:
1. Plaintiff cannot prove any infringement.
2. Plaintiff wants to keep the defendant from proving that plaintiff's complaint is
unfounded, hypocritical and based on questionable exhibits, on a questionable
copyright, and on doubtful witnesses, and that plaintiff, (to use his own words)

™ would look very, very bad, whenever this comes out”
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» Plaintiff acts in bad faith

Unfortunately, these particular reasons were inspiring the plaintiff to debase himself

to do all possible to obstruct the pro-se defendant in his defence.

Plaintiff pretended that he had sent letters to YouTube as the Court ordered,
plaintiff stated that he never got an answer, (Exh. 33a,b) while defendant
received three (3) answers (Exh.33c-f) the same day that the requests were
made. After defendant filed a motion on June 25, (#112) to compel plaintiff
because he was not ‘honestly’ seeking the ‘missing’ video by YouTube, plaintiff
rapidly send the requesting ‘letter’ to YouTube which was, just like all the
answers to defendants requests, answered the same day. Although plaintiff
was ordered by the Court, to request YouTube to produce the video at issue,
he didnt.  Although defendant had informed the pilaintiff that he could get the
videos from YouTube, by issuing a proper subpoena, plaintiff refused to do so.
Carefully planned, plaintiff waited till Aug.9™ to issue a subpoena to YouTube to
produce his evidence, until he was sure that defendant did not follow the Courts
Order, to present his hard drive, which contains privileged and private
information, for an image mirror copy of defendants private hard drive.

Plaintiff could have filed this subpoena many weeks ago, ...but he didn’t.
Intentionally, he trapped the pro-se defendant with his litigation technique.
Defendant clearly stated twice in the deposition that he didn’t finish the DVD
nor Manual and that there was a lot of work to finish them.

Defendant was very clear in the deposition where he stated twice:

" I don't instruct anyone, Mr, Tratos, because I'm not selling this product. I'm
not selfling the prop, And the manual is not even ready, and the CD is not even
ready. Because before the first person could ever buy this trick, I got this
lawsuit filed by Mr. Teller. And I prefer to wait until the Court decides if I'm able

or allowed to sell my invention.” (Exh.34a dep.P.109:12)
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" The manual I was working on was stilf a very rough "draft” and needed to be
finished. There was a lot of work to do on this manual.” (Exh,34b dep.P.181:7)

* Nevertheless, plaintiff pulled defendants words out of its context and
succeeded to persuade the Court to make an order that defendant has to
produce two things he can impossibly produce, since they do not exist !

With disrespect to the defendant’s right to a fair trial and his right to privacy, plaintiff
succeeded to persuade the Court to order (#135) the defendant to deliver a copy of
the hard drive of his computer.

Plaintiff is aware and knows that the defendant will never hand over the hard drive
of his computer, containing vital information on the life of the defendant. Demanding
a mirror of this hard drive, and demanding to hand over the mirror to the plaintiff's
counsel, is clearly an infringement of the right of the defendant to his privacy. Filing a
motion to request the Court to grant case terminating sanctions, when the defendant
does not comply with the plaintiff’s demands to copy the hard drive of the defendant’s
computer infringes the right of the defendant to a fair trial,

As a result, plaintiff might present such a court order as the proof that the
defendant infringed his copyright, whereas in reality, plaintiff did not prove any
infringement at all, such a court order would only be possible by infringing the
defendant’s fundamental rights.

« Plaintiff is provoking others to copy shadows.

The actions of plaintiff seems to demonstrate that he is hoping that someone is
copying the ‘shadows’ illusion.

First he is silent about the fact that the shadows illusion is copyrighted, he
never and nowhere mentions a single word regarding a copyright on this illusion, not
in the thousands newspaper articles, nowhere on his website and never and nowhere
in the comments on the YouTube channel. (Exh.31a-e) When Bakardy requested

Teller to inform him about his copyright, he refused. (Exh.6a,b)
25
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Plaintiff is instructing others to write comments on the internet, he could easily
instruct one of his employees or just by himself write an informative comment on the

YouTube ‘shadows’ documentary video stating that shadows is copyrighted by Teller.

But he didnt and he doesn't.

The U.S. Government Copyright Office advises all copyright holders to inform
the public with a © notice symbol that the work is copyrighted since it is often
beneficial. Because prior law did contain such a requirement, however, the use of
notice is still relevant to the copyright status of older works. MNotice was required
under the 1976 Copyright Act. Use of the notice may be important because it informs
the public that the work is protected by copyright, identifies the copyright owner, and
shows the year of first publication. Furthermore, in the event that a work is
infringed, if a proper notice of copyright appears on the published copy or copies to
which a defendant in a copyright infringement suit had access, then no weight shall be
given to such a defendant’s interposition of a defense based on innocent infringement
in mitigation of actual or statutory damages, except as provided in section 504(c)(2)
of the copyright law. Innocent infringement occurs when the infringer did not realize

that the work was protected. (Exh. 28a-d)

The use of the copyright notice is the r nsibility of the copyright owner and does

not require advance permission from, or registration with, the Copyright Office.

Teller did not behave responsible, on the contrary. In the only shadows

documentary video to be seen on the internet he chalienges and provokes everyone

by stating: “nobody knows how ‘shadows’ is done and no one will ever figure it out..”

simultaneously plaintiff challenges everyone,
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in the TV show Fool Us, also to be seen on the WWW internet, wherein the
challenge is to perform a magic trick/illusion which cant be figured out by Penn &

Teller http://www.voutube.com/watch?v=YEzo5Krtn10

(1:10) (Exh.31a)

Bakardy could easily have fooled Penn & Teller in their challenging and provoking
television show ‘Fool Us’ since it seems clear that Teller can’t figure out how to
perform an illusion wherein a 100% visible and removable rose falls apart in a water
filled, removable and transparent coca cola bottle as to be seen in Bakardy's video,
since he offered Bakardy the double of what he usually pays for developing

illusions/props as such. (Exh, 35a-c¢)

Plaintiff is known for his challenging and provoking statements in TV shows,
wherein e.g. veterans are humiliated when they see the U.S. Flag burned in a magic
trick, or the Christian people are ridiculed and humiliated when they hear plaintiff's

statements filled with profanity and sacrilege. (Exh.36)

In the magic community and on the internet , Plaintiff is known as one of
‘the Bad Boys'. Many magicians feel humiliated and ridiculed by plaintiff’s multiple
revealing and exposure of many valuable illusions/tricks, ruining many magicians

earnings. (Exh.37)

It came to light that plaintiff committed spoliation of evidence, Deliberately.

purposefully and intentionally, as proved in the following:
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» In a phone conversation between the parties on or about 03.21.2012, Teller
informed the defendant that Teller did not want anyone else in the world to
perform a similar trick to Tellers (shadows). The day after, plaintiff confirmed
this in an e-mail. (Exh.38)

Defendant was surprised and told Teller that defendants trick was very different
from Tellers but that there were other magicians performing a very similar trick

as Tellers. Such as ALS - Petros — Hector etc.. all to be seen on YouTube,

» After plaintiff realized that these videos were the factual prove that ‘shadows’
has become a standard manufactured trick and that the illusion became public
information, he rapidly contacted HECTOR, on date of April 2™ 2012, requesting

to pull off his videos of the YouTube channel video.

On April 2™, 2012, Plaintiff sent an E-mail to Hector, stating:

"... to assist me in my current thinking, would you mind pulling the
video off of YouTube? It could be used by the current manufacturer
(meaning the defendant) to “prove” that this is now a standard,

manufactured trick. Thank you, Teller.”

About 30 minutes later, Hector answered : “Yes, sure I will pull it off.” (Exh.39a,b).

And he did. Important evidence for the defendant was spoiled.

Plaintiff filed his complaint on April 11", 2012. Plaintiff was fully aware that ‘shadows’
was performed all over the internet and that this could be a proof for the defendant

that ‘shadows’ is now a standard manufactured trick.
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After he discovered another video on YouTube, again uploaded many years ago,
again with thousands of views, he again contacted Hector, on date of April 15", 2012,
requesting:
"It appears somebody posted your drawing-version of the
(shadows) routine without your knowledge. Would you be willing to
ask YouTube to take that down...””

Again Hector followed Tellers instructions. Again spoliation took place on important

evidence for the defendant. (Exh. 39c,d)

Plaintiff has deliberately, purposefully and intentionally instructed Hector to destroy or
tamper evidence which could prove that defendant didnt infringe on his alleged
copyright.
* ¥k
Another magician, 'ALSmagic’ uploaded his version of shadows on the WWW Internet
and commented or stated on the YouTube channel:
... it is actually public information... I found it on the web and made a newer
version, there are a bunch of people who have made different versions and
twice as many theories.. “ and further “...I don't need permission because this
was exposed some years back by multiple magicians so his (meaning Teller)
methods are now public information...”
Defendant was able to take a screenshot (Exh.8a) before the ALS magician’s
comment ‘magically’ disappeared from the internet and has been changed to ‘more
Teller friendly’ comments, as to be seen in the last lines of the comment, wherein the
public is spurred to go see the Penn & Teller show. (Exh.8b)
More than likely on Tellers demand, instructing the magician to ‘remove’ his
comments since they were showing that Tellers trick ‘shadows’ became public
information,
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» Plainti viden
As we all know the internet is fast, has no secrets and is a big source of information,
also for the defendant in this litigation. To obstruct and hinder the defendant’s search

for evidence, piaintiff did not only instruct others to remove certain YouTube videos,

but also instructed others what to write and comment on the internet.

The Magic Café, a forum for magicians, picked up Tellers lawsuit against Bakardy,
the same day it was filed in Court. Multiple commenter’s were suggesting that Tellers
complaint was hypocrite, since Penn & Teller are known as the ‘Bad Boys’ revealing
many magicians secrets by exposure, other commenter’'s noticed that there were

more magicians performing a similar act to Tellers, where under Hector.

Hector, who was already in contact with Teller for weeks, noticed this and contacted

Teller again, on date of April 15™ 2012, and wrote:

“ There is a thread on the magic Café forum about your lawsuit... and some
people were attacking me, so I had to clear a bit my situation...I haven't
given any information about the situation but I thought I had to say
something. I hope it is OK for you, please, let me know if you want me to

remove the comment or say something else.. Hector” (Exh.39e)

On date of April 15" 2012 ( 4 days after Teller filed the copyright complaint against
Dogge) Teller instructed Hector to add the text (hereunder) as reply to the thread on
the Magic Café Forum:
"When I recently realized what happened, I contacted Mr.
Teller myseif. I told him (and I live by my word) that, as much

as I love my routine, I will do whatever Mr. Teller deems right
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in this situation, If he asks me to limit its use or even remove
it from my repertoire, I will do so. I will let you know the

outcome of our discussions.” (Exh.39f)

On April 16, Hector responded to Teller:
“Hello, I did add that, I hope it's OK now. I wish you the best on all

this process. Hector.” (Exh.39f)

It is clear that Hector was doing what he was instructed to do, by Teller, the plaintiff,
and sadly writes “and I live by my word” while he actually lives by Tellers words, or
even worse, by Tellers instructions to obstruct the defendant in this litigation

‘process’,

On date of May 4" ,2012 Teller wrote: (Exh. 39g)
“"Dear Hector, Just an update. On the sad side: I'm still unresolved

with Gerard Dogge. That law suit against him has been filed and is

proceeding. But on the happy side {and please don't share this

until we've completed it} I am confident you and I can work out an
agreement...”

On date of May 4™, 2012 Hector responded to Teller: (Exh.39h)
"Hello Teller, Thank you for the update. I feel so happy to read that
you give me this privilege, thank you very much for the
consideration. I won't say anything, do not worry about that, not
even when we agree on something. This is something between you
and me. Our life consists on keeping secrets, is not going to be a

problem...”
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Hector got rewarded for his silence and cooperation with some ‘free’ tickets for the
Penn & Teller shows and... a ‘free’ license from Teiler. Not really free, for a 100% as

Teller wrote in his email from July 23™ ,2012: (Exh.39i)

“"Send both copies to me. I'll sign both and return one to you. And

the hundred dollars makes the transaction official (and helps to

pay the cost of my attorney drawing up the agreement)...”

Apparently Teller realized that, aithough he can intimidate some magicians to make
them do what *he’ wants them to do, he cannot control the internet, he cannot turn
the clock backwards, making all ‘evidence’ disappear, evidence for the defendant that
Tellers ‘shadows’ is a manufactured standard illusion performed by many, since many

years all over the world.

On date of March 13", 2013, Teller was asked in the (1% set -R38) discovery to
"Admit that you're aware that there are more magicians performing the act ‘shadows”.
And responded: “.. Teller denies the request as he knows of no professional
magicians performing the shadows illusion.” (Exh.40a)

Obviously, plaintiff was lying again, since he was instructing Hector, a year before
on April 2™ 2012, to take down several YouTube videos wherein shadows was
performed by others than Teller, since he instructed others what to write in their
name on the internet forums and since he licensed several other magicians.

Plaintiff knew very well that *his’ trick was performed by Hector and others, for
many years and seen by thousands all over the world, and plaintiff knew that exactly

this could form the evidence for the defendant proving that plaintiff's copyright is

~ questionable and doubtful.
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Plaintiff instructed to destroy important evidence for the defendant, evidence not in
the ‘spoliator's’ favor.

More than likely, a similar thing happened with ‘ALS Magic’, another
professional magician performing the illusion “plants and ‘shadows™, on YouTube.
{Exh.Ba,b)

When plaintiff was requested, during the discovery (2™ set), to produce all
correspondence between Teller and ALS regarding ALS performance of his version of
shadows, Teller refused to reply, with the lame excuse that this could not be done

since there was no protective order nor confidential agreement. (Exh.40b)

Yes he was, without doubt. Deliberately, purposefuilly and intentionally he
tampered and destroyed evidence that proves that Tellers copyright is questionable
and that defendant did not infringe on whatsoever.

It is not the first time that plaintiff is trying to turn the clock backwards by
tampering legal evidence, even after it was legally filed in the U.S. Court of Nevada-
Las Vegas. On date of April 11", 2012, plaintiff filed exhibit 3 to his complaint,
showing screenshots taken by and on Tellers computer, showing Tellers favourite

web links right above the defendants name and picture,

Unfortunately five of the web links were gay orientated hard porn sites.
(‘mantube’, ‘Corbin’, *CFSelect’, ‘2Long’, ‘Tyler’) Web sites which are absolutely

not the defendants favourites, he abhors them.

Defendant had to ask Teller 4 (four) times for an explanation regarding the

incriminating screenshots before he wanted to answer.
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Tellers answer (Exh.41) shows that he was not intended to replace the incriminating
exhibits and does not show any ‘courtesy’ at all. On the contrary Teller wrote: ™
There is no injury to you and no actionable bases for objecting to documents
filed with the US Federal Court... Stop wasting my time” Afterwards it
turned out that Tellers answer was no more than one of his many hypocritical lies
since he re-filed the exhibits at issue after being tampered that same day

(04.25.2012) (Exh.42a-d)

Plaintiff could have redact or seal the incriminating documents, ..but he didn't.
when defendant asked him in the deposition how this could happen having an army of
the best attorney’s in the Greenberg Traurig Law Firm, Teller responded flatly that his

attorneys makes mistakes. (Exh.43a,b)

Afterwards it turned out that plaintiff tampered the legal evidence after it was
filed, without the defendants approval to conceal the porn web links.
Plaintiff stated that he altered the screenshots originally filed as exhibit 3, on

the defendants request, after receiving Dogge’s concerns, out of courtesy to Dogge.

It is a fact that Dogge never requested the plaintiff to exchange original legal
evidence filed in the US Court with altered, modified, manipulated, corrected, or photo
shopped exhibits, since it is a crime to tamper legal evidence after it is filed in Court,

without giving notice to, or without all parties approval.

Even if defendant would have requested so, quod non, the world famous
Greenberg Traurig law firm attorneys knows, or should know, that tampering legal

evidence is a crime and that ‘out of courtesy’ is no excuse to viclate the Federal Rules.
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There 1s no doubt that defendants rights are violated. The litigation began with an
enormous defamation and is now coming to an end with multiple motions of the
plaintiff requesting the Court for terminating sanctions, without given the defendant
the chance to prove that plaintiff's complaint has no ground and ON TOP by tampering

and destroying evidence for the defendant.

+ _Plaintiff’'s witnhesses are guestionable and instructed by Teller.

Plaintiff's disclosures informed the defendant that Mr. Hector and Mr. Guinee are

expected to testify regarding the facts and circumstances concerning the claims
alleged in this action.(Exh.44)

1. Regarding Hector, it needs no explanation that his testimony will be doubtful.

As the Belgium sentence states, ‘wiens brood men eet, diens taal men spreekt’
meaning ‘'whose bread you eat, whose language you speak’.

Hector was helping Teller, in all silence, to destroy defendants evidence and got
rewarded with a ‘free’ licence to continue what he was doing already for years.
Performing shadows, Obviously Hector is eating out of Tellers hand and will never
bite the hand that feeds him, and handed him a ‘free’ license to continue his earnings

with performing shadows.

2. Regarding Guinee, it needs to be said that Teller approached Gunther Guinee
in the beginning of the litigation. Teller requested Guinee to persuade Bakardy, to sell
his creation exclusively to Teller and to no one else.

As reward Guinee was invited as Tellers guest to come to Las Vegas, and so on.. as

stated in (Exh.45a,b) his email from April 4" ,2012 :

“...If we could agree on a realistic fee, I would consider hiring

him (Bakardy) as consultant to try and improve my trick, provided
35
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of course, he takes it off the market and sells it to no one but
me. I think his notion of seeing the stem in water might have
value for me..” and " ... Know that regardless of the outcome,
you now have a new friend in the US. When you come to Vegas
you will be most cordially received as my guest. And if there are
any Penn & Teller materials (e.g. my David Abbot book) that
interest you, they will be on their way to you with my

gratitude...Teller.”

And that's what he did: for a few silver coins, Guinee contacted Bakardy trying to
persuade him as Teller asked him to do, Defendant told Guinee that he was surprised
with his interference, especially because Guinee, who is the publisher of the
Escamoteur a Magazine for Magicians, accepted Bakardy’s advertisement a few weeks
earlier.

Bakardy, sure that his creation/illusion is the first and only one in the world
wherein a removable and complete visible flower falls apart on the magicians control,
in a water filled, transparent, removable vase or Coca Cola bottle, chose not to be

intimidated. Not by Teller. Not by Guinee.

It is obvious that Tellers friend and ‘guest’ Guinee, will not bite the hand that feeds

him, treats him as a guest and sends him presents ‘with Tellers gratitude’,

There is no doubt that at least those two witnesses, Mr. Hector and Mr. Guinee are

instructed by the plaintiff and that plaintiff is obstructing the proceedings, violating

the defendant rights for a fair trial.
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eTellers deposition,

Tellers deposition took place on July 1%, in Las Vegas, Tellers home town. Pro-se
defendant, for the first time in his life confronted with ‘depositions’, understood that
the deposition needed to be done in a legal way, in the presence of a legal Court
Reporter and videographer, who would afterwards provide a legal transcript and video
recording.

Of course, the Belgian defendant not knowing anyone in Vegas, could only hope
that he selected an upright legal service office. Defendant selected the Offices of
Lawyers Solutions Group, 900 South Fourth Street, Suite 100, Las Vegas, with Yvette

Rodriguez as court reporter, to take the deposition on Teller.

Some strange things happened, although it was agreed that the transcript would be
send to the defendant within 10 days after the deposition, the transcript was
‘released’ only on date of July 25". Most inconvenient for the defendant, since he
needed to refer to the transcript in his responses to the Court, before July 25,

Coincidence ? Or is there more?

There is more, because, when reading the transcript, the defendant was surprised by
the many ‘clerical errors’ and noticed, after comparing the transcript with the

video/audio recording he had received, that there were important things ‘missing’.

The transcript delivered by the Legal Court Reporter counts 39,624 words.

The video transcript, with the ‘missing words’ corrected, counts 43.223 words,
Meaning 3.599 words or 20 pages more than the transcript delivered by the Las
Vegas Court reporter,

Most of the ‘missing parts’ are in plaintiff’s favour. Coincidence ?
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Defendant therefore requested the Court reporter to deliver a proper and complete

transcript. (Exh. 46a,b) Until now defendant did not receive a correct transcript.

Defendant cannot prove that plaintiff approached or instructed anyone in this

matter, but can only add this experience to his previous experiences.

Defendant experienced during the proceedings that Mr. Teller is an influential
and intimidating perscn, not only regarding the instructed witnesses, but defendant
experienced that he had difficulties to serve Teller with the 'summons’ for the Antwerp
defamation litigation. The official server, working for and presented by The Central
Authority, could not locate the most famous celebrity in Las Vegas, Teller. {Exh.47)

Defendant had to contract another Legal Server to get the job done.

On date of May 16™ 2013, defendant filed a motion to the Court for
investigating Tellers hard drives to exclude criminal facts, and the same day the
Courts clerk informed the defendant that defendants further filings will not be

accepted. Only after defendants insisting, his filings were further accepted.

Defendant cannot prove that all this happened due to plaintiff’s “influence’, but
defendant cannot believe that all this is 'coincidence *. Assuming that plaintiff did
‘steer’ all this, it matches with plaintiff's previous behaviour towards other magicians

and witnesses , which is proven.
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II. L UMENTS

A. Legal standard
Being a Belgian citizen and not a American lawyer, defendant is not supposed to know
the U.S. Federal Rules, but tries his best to defend himseif , pro-se. Defendant is not
able to refer to previous Court orders ever made in the U.S. unknown for the
defendant. Defendants defence is based on common sense, honesty and truthful
facts.

B. Plaintiffs alleged "Undisputed Facts’ are not proven.
To prove copyright infringement, Teller must prove two elements:

1. “ownership” of a valid copyright.

2. "copying” - that Dogge copied Tellers copyrighted work.
1.1s Tellers copyright ‘valid’ ?
Plaintiff shows a copy of a registered copyright. This is not a prove that it is still valid.
There are many reasons to believe that Tellers copyright lost its legitimacy already
years ago.
Since it is proven, (a) That Teller abandoned his work. (b) That Teller wrongly
registered a magic routine/trick/illusion as a pantomime-drama. (c) That the USA
Government Copyright Office does not register magic routines and states that (d)
magic routines are not protected by copyright. {e) That Teller never and nowhere
informed anyone that ‘shadows’ is copyrighted, while this is recommended by the US
Copyright Office (Exh.) (d) That defendant requested multiple times for a copy of
the copyright details, but that Teller refused to inform the defendant. (f) That based
on a prop, shadows is a standard illusion, performed, sold, rented, bought and sold
second hand, all over the world. (g) That the internet reveals how the prop works and
how to built the prop to perform ‘shadows’. (h) That Penn and Teller openly, on TV
and on Internet, challenge anyone to ravel out the ‘shadows’ illusion.

For these reasons, Tellers copyright is not valid or is at least doubtful.

39



Case 2:12-cv-00591-JCM-GWF Document 151 Filed 08/15/13 Page 40 of 188



